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November 20, 2018         
File: PE4490-LET.01 
 
Richcraft Group of Companies  
210-2280 St. Laurent Boulevard  
Ottawa, Ontario, 
K1G 4K1 
 
 
Attention: Mr. Kevin Yemm 
 
Subject: Phase I - Environmental Site Assessment Update 

3194 Jockvale Road   
Ottawa, Ontario 

 
Dear Sir,        

Further to your request, Paterson Group (Paterson) conducted a Phase I - Environmental 

Site Assessment (ESA) Update for the aforementioned property. This report updates the 

Phase I ESA report entitled: “Phase I-Environmental Site Assessment, Proposed 

Commercial Development, 3194 Jockvale Road, Ottawa, Ontario,” prepared by Paterson 

in March 2012.   

This report is intended to meet the requirements for an updated Phase I ESA, as per the 

MECP O.Reg 153/04, as amended.  This report is to be read in conjunction with the 2012 

report. 

Background 

The Phase I Property is located in a Mixed-Use Centre and Development Reserve zone, 

located on the west side of Greenbank Road, northwest of the Greenbank Road and 

Jockvale Road intersection, in the City of Ottawa, Ontario.  The subject site was occupied 

by a farmstead prior to 1954, which was then demolished in 2008/2009. The site has 

remained vacant. 

The original Phase I-ESA for the subject site had identified three (3) minor potential 

concerns on the Phase I property, which included imported fill material, impact from 

possible pesticide use, possible leakage of a former domestic aboveground storage tank 

(AST) and an occurrence report provided by the MECP indicating an onsite spill in 1997 
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that was reported to have been remediated at that time.  A geotechnical investigation and 

limited sampling program were concurrently conducted onsite.  Based on the findings of 

the subsurface investigations, no evidence of impacted fill or contamination as a result of 

the noted potential concerns was identified. No further investigative work (i.e. Phase II-

ESA) was recommended at that time.  

Site Conditions 

A site visit was conducted on November 16, 2018.  No changes were noted since the 

2012 Phase I-ESA. The subject site is currently vacant with some trees on the northeast 

section of the property.   Fill material was observed on the northeastern portion of the 

property, which is most likely from previous grading activities reported in the original 

Phase I-ESA report.  No environmental concerns were identified during the site visit.  

Site drainage consists primarily of infiltration.  No discoloured snow/vegetation was 

observed on the property.   No private sewage systems or wells were observed on the 

subject property.  No evidence of current or former railway or spur lines on the subject 

property was observed at the time of the site inspection.   

The site is below the grade of Jockvale Road and slopes downwards towards the south.  

The regional topography also slopes downwards towards the south in the direction of the 

Jock River, approximately 610 m south from the subject site. No changes to the land use 

of the surrounding properties were observed during the site visit.  The configuration of the 

subject site is shown on Drawing PE4490-1– Site Plan, which is appended to this report. 

Updated Records Review 

A request was submitted on November 16, 2018 to the MECP Freedom of Information 

(FOI) office for information with respect to certificates of approval, permits to take water, 

certificates of property use or any other similar MECP issued instruments for the site.  A 

response from the MECP had not been received at the time this report was issued.  Any 

pertinent information will be forwarded to the client upon receipt.  A copy of the request 

form has been appended to this report. 

A requisition form was sent to the City of Ottawa to request information from the City’s 

Historical Land Use Inventory (HLUI 2005) database as part of the 2012 Phase I-ESA for 

the subject property.  The City’s HLUI 2005 database has not been updated since issuing 

the original Phase I-ESA report; therefore, an additional HLUI request was not submitted 

for this Phase I-ESA Update.  The HLUI search results from the 2005 database have 

been appended to this report. 
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The TSSA, Fuels Safety Branch in Toronto was contacted electronically on November 

16, 2018 to inquire about current and former underground storage tanks, spills and 

incidents for the site and neighbouring properties.  No records of an underground storage 

tank, spills or incidents were listed in the TSSA registry for the subject site or the adjacent 

properties.  A copy of the TSSA correspondence has been appended to this report.  

The latest aerial photograph reviewed at the time of the 2012 Phase I ESA was dated 

2008 (GeoOttawa website).  A review of an aerial photograph for 2017 shows the site as 

vacant lnad.  No significant changes were noted with regard to the surrounding properties 

within the Phase I study area since the 2008 aerial photograph, with the exception of 

some additional commercial development north / northwest of the subject site, what 

appears to be a retail fuel outlet (RFO) and a commercial/retail building.  

The adjacent properties to the north and east of the subject site were occupied by 

commercial retail stores and a retail fuel outlet (RFO), and Greenbank Road, followed by 

more commercial retail stores.  Adjacent properties to the south and east were vacant 

lands.  Based on relatively recent development, approximately in 2009, the RFO located 

at 3775 Standherd Drive (approximately 160 m north) is not considered to pose a risk to 

the subject site.   

No other PCAs were identified with regard to the current use of the neighbouring lands.   

Update Conceptual Site Model 

Based on the above noted records and the site visit, no significant changes were apparent 

on the subject site or surrounding lands.  The surrounding lands to the south and 

southeast are comprised of agricultural fields and/or vacant lands, lands to the west are 

a Municipal Stormwater Facility, and the lands to the north and east are comprised of 

commercial retail businesses along Strandherd Drive.  No other PCAs were identified in 

the study area that are considered to represent APECs for this Phase I-ESA property.  

Based on our findings, a Phase II-ESA is not required for the subject site.   

Statement of Limitations 

This Phase I - Environmental Site Assessment Update report has been prepared in 

general accordance with Ontario Regulation 153/04, as amended under the 

Environmental Protection Act. The conclusions presented herein are based on 

information gathered from a limited historical review and field inspection program. The 

findings of the Phase I - ESA Update are based on a review of readily available geological, 

historical and regulatory information and a cursory review made at the time of the field 

assessment. 
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Should any conditions be encountered at the subject site and/or historical information that 

differ from our findings, we request that we be notified immediately in order to allow for a 

reassessment. 

This report was prepared for the sole use of Richcraft Group of Companies. Permission 

and notification from the above noted party and Paterson will be required to release this 

report to any other party.   

We trust that this submission satisfies your current requirements. Should you have any 

questions please contact the undersigned. 

Paterson Group Inc. 
 

 
 

Mandy Witteman, M.A.Sc.   
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
Mark D’Arcy, P.Eng.  

 

 

Report Distribution: 

❑ Richcraft Group of Companies 
❑ Paterson Group  

Appendix: 

❑ MECP FOI Request 
❑ TSSA Correspondence 
❑ City of Ottawa HLUI Report 
❑ Figure 1 – Key Plan 
❑ Drawing PE4490-1– Site Plan 
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Mandy Witteman

From: Public Information Services <publicinformationservices@tssa.org>

Sent: November-16-18 12:33 PM

To: Mandy Witteman

Subject: RE: Search records request (PE4490) - Record Fuels

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hello, 

 

I have searched the below noted address (addresses) and I have located the following record: 

Inst 
Number 

Context Attribute 1 Attribute 
2 

Address City Province Postal 
Code 

Inventory 
Item Id 
SUM 

Inststatus

33459198 FS Facility - - 3777 STRANDHERD RD       NEPEAN ON K2J 4B1 6872 Active 

35434142 FS Facility - - 3779 STRANDHERD DR       BARRHAVEN ON K2J 5M4 6872 Active 

 

Inst 
Number 

Context Attribute 
1 

Attribute 2 Address City Province Postal 
Code 

Inventory 
Item Id 
SUM 

Inststatusname O

48371046 FS Facility - - 3201 GREENBANK 
RD       

OTTAWA ON K2J 4H9 6872 Active LO

 

Effective November 1, 2017 TSSA requires that any requests for the release of public information, must complete the release for public information form.  The 

release for public information form can be found at https://www.tssa.org/en/about-tssa/release-of-public-information.aspx?_mid_=392.  Please complete the 

form (1 address per form) and email the completed form to publicinformationservices@tssa.org or through mail along with a fee of $56.50 (including HST) per 

location. The fee is payable with credit card (Visa or MasterCard) or with a Cheque made payable to TSSA. 

 

Although TSSA believes the information provided pursuant to your request is accurate, please note that TSSA does not warrant this information in any way 

whatsoever. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Roxana 
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From: Mandy Witteman <MWitteman@Patersongroup.ca>  

Sent: November 16, 2018 9:49 AM 

To: Public Information Services <publicinformationservices@tssa.org> 

Subject: Search records request (PE4490) 

 

Good Morning  

 

Could you please complete a search of your records for underground/aboveground storage tanks, historical spills or other incidents/infractions for the 

following  addresses in Ottawa, ON: 

 

Strandherd Drive: 3777, 3779,  

Greenbank Rd: 3161, 3201 , 3181 

Jockvale Rd: 3194, 3232 

Marketplace Ave: 51 

 

Thank you! 

 

Best Regards, 

 

Mandy Witteman 

 

patersongroup 
solution oriented engineering 
 

154 Colonnade Road South 
Ottawa, Ontario, K2E 7J5 
Tel: (613) 226-7381 Ext. 339 

 

Roxana Mashtaler | Public Information Agent 
Facilities 
345 Carlingview  Drive 
Toronto, Ontario M9W 6N9 
Tel: +1-416-734-3472 |  Fax: +1-416-231-6183 | E-Mail: rmashtaler@tssa.org 
www.tssa.org 
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Fax: (613) 226-6344 
Email: mwitteman@patersongroup.ca 
 

 

This electronic message and any attached documents are intended only for the named recipients. This communication from the Technical Standards and Safety 

Authority may contain information that is privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure and it must not be disclosed, copied, forwarded or 

distributed without authorization. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the original message.  



















 
 

 

FIGURE 1 

KEY PLAN 

SITE 




